City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

316 Stevens Street

12-03-256-004

HISTORIC NAME: Dusenbury-Van Vlack-Poor House

COMMON NAME:

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: c. 1854

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: ca. 1855, ca. 1897-101

ARCHITECT:

BUILDER: John Chambers / David Martin (probable)

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Gable-Front, Gabled Ell

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: | -plan

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 1.5

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Limestone

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Clapboard

FRONT PORCH: Yes

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: No

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Historic (non-original)

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood (replacement)

WINDOW STYLE: Double Hung, 1/1

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Gable

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes

|:| Central Geneva NRHD

|E| North Geneva NRHD

|E| Local Geneva HD

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick (painted)

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

The early house retains its original form, siding, and fenestration;
however, windows have been replaced over time.

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:




City of Geneva, lllinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

316 Stevens Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The house may have been constructed in two sections; however, it is
unclear (from the exterior) whether the east wing or the west wing
pre-dates the other. Presumably, the first section was constructed by
pioneer carpenter John Chambers in 1854. Chambers' sister, Jane,
sold the property in December 1854 to another early carpenter,
David Martin, who may have enlarged and remodeled the house
before selling the property in October 1855 to Dr. Absalom
Townsend "A. T." Dusenbury.

One of Geneva's earliest physicians, Dr. A. T. Dusenbury and his
family came to Geneva from St. Louis, Missouri. They lived at this
property until about January 1856, when they moved to a property at
on James Street between Fourth and Fifth streets, according to an
1859 Kane County business directory. Dr. Dusenbury maintained an
office at Third and James streets. While living in Geneva, Dr.
Dusenbury buried 3 of their 7 children: Gertrude Dusenbury
(1845-1864); Townsend A. Dusenbury (1852-1861); and Arthur Ward

SOURCES:

GHM Archives; 2016 North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva;
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Recorder’s Office Land Records;
Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

Iron fence is probably not original to the property; however, it is
characteristic of the Jennings-Blomgren era.
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The house may have been constructed in two sections; however, it is unclear (from the exterior) whether the east wing or the west wing pre-dates the other. Presumably, the first section was constructed by pioneer carpenter John Chambers in 1854. Chambers' sister, Jane, sold the property in December 1854 to another early carpenter, David Martin, who may have enlarged and remodeled the house before selling the property in October 1855 to Dr. Absalom Townsend "A. T." Dusenbury.

One of Geneva's earliest physicians, Dr. A. T. Dusenbury and his family came to Geneva from St. Louis, Missouri. They lived at this property until about January 1856, when they moved to a property at on James Street between Fourth and Fifth streets, according to an 1859 Kane County business directory. Dr. Dusenbury maintained an office at Third and James streets. While living in Geneva, Dr. Dusenbury buried 3 of their 7 children: Gertrude Dusenbury (1845-1864); Townsend A. Dusenbury (1852-1861); and Arthur Ward Dusenbury (1860-before 1870). The Dusenbury family left Geneva around 1869 and settled in Madison County, Illinois.

The next owners of the Stevens Street property were Catherine (Dusenbury) Ferris in 1856; Edward J. Conn from 1856 to 1858 and Nathaniel Van Vlack from 1858 to 1860. 

Catherine (Dusenbury) Ferris was the youngest sister of A. T. Dusenbury and lived with her brother, Benjamin Dusenbury, and his family at Third and James streets. (Benjamin Dusenbury was a teacher at Geneva, arriving around 1856 from New York state. Benjamin and his family were enumerated at Geneva in the 1860 Federal census but returned to New York by September 1860, when he died.)

Nathaniel Van Vlack was the eighth child of the eleven children of Jacob (1787-1869) and Abigail (1792-1868) Van Vlack. Following the death of 29-year-old Nathaniel Van Vlack in 1858, his estate was divided between the care of his parents; his sister, Amelia; and his brother, Townsend. 

The Geneva property passed to Amelia E. (Van Vlack) Watson (1858-1868), who then sold the property to her widowed sister, Rebecca M. (Van Vlack) Jennings (1868-1885), who lived in the house with her parents and her children by 1860. The Van Vlack family lived at the property for 27 years.

The property was sold to Horace S. Burr (1885); then Thomas Wallace Poor (1885-1897); and finally to John N. Blomgren, whose descendants held the property from 1897 until 1959. The Blomgren family apparently rented the Stevens Street property when members of their own family did not occupy the house (see 317 and 327 N. Fourth Street).

The property is notable for its association with one or more significant persons, specifically John Chambers, David Martin, and Dr. A. T. Dusenbury, as well as for architecture and community development, specifically the Early Settlement Period (1837-1857) of Geneva.
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